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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMNU

Dear Shareholders

In the context of our long-term plans to maximize the intrinsic value of our Company fiscal 2011 was very

successful year for InterGroup The Company recorded net income of $8751000 resulting in net income per share

attributable to InterGroup of $3.63 basic and $3.49 diluted for its fiscal year ended June 30 2011 For its fiscal

year ended June 30 2010 the Company recorded net loss of $2549000 resulting in net loss of $1.07 per share

attributable to InterGroup Each of the Companys business segments contributed to those favorable results in fiscal

2011

HOTEL OPERATIONS

Our management team has positioned our Hilton San Francisco Financial District hotel property the Hotel to take

advantage of the gradual recovery in the hotel industry that took place in the Bay Area during fiscal 2011 Lead by

Geoffrey Palermo Managing Director of Justice Investors and Kevin OBrien our Hotel General Manger working in

conjunction with the members of Portsmouths Hotel Committee we were able to significantly increase the operating

income of the Hotel while continuing to control operating expenses The Hotel generated income from operations of

$3318000 before interest expense on operating revenues of $36282000 for the fiscal year ended June 30 2011

compared to operating income of $512000 before interest expense on operating revenues of $32680000 for the

fiscal year ended June 30 2010 Room revenues increased by $2991000 and food and beverage revenues increased

by $325000 compared to fiscal 2010 We also saw an increase in garage revenues of $92000 from fiscal 2010 As

result of the significant increase in operating income and decrease in depreciation and amortization expense we

were able to generate net income from hotel operations of $512000 in fiscal 2011 compared to net loss of

$2390000 in fiscal 2010

The significant improvement in room revenues was primarily attributable to $20 increase in average daily room rates

to $163 in fiscal 2011 from $143 in fiscal 2010 as the Hotel was able to capture greater percentage of higher rated

business leisure and group travel business which also resulted in higher food and beverage revenues Occupancy

rates decreased slightly to 86% from 87% since the Hotel was able to be more selective with its mix of business in

fiscal 2011 and reduced the amount of discounted Intemet business that it was forced to take in the prior year to

maintain occupancy in very competitive market and recessionary economic conditions As result of excellent

revenue management and dedicated sales and marketing efforts our management team was able to boost the Hotels

revenue per available room RevPar number by $15 higher than fiscal 2010

While we have seen some recovery
in the hospitality industry in the San Francisco market it remains very

competitive To differentiate the Hotel from its competition we have continued to improve our guest rooms and

facilities and have implemented innovative strategies to enhance the guest experience We recently opened new

executive lounge on the 26th floor of the Hotel and upgraded our breakfast service We upgraded our internet

connectivity throughout the Hotel and have provided more technological amenities for our guests We made the Hotel

more energy efficient and have enhanced our recycling program to support the concept of greener world while

reducing our operating costs The Hotel also became groundbreaker in implementing Hiltons Huanying

Welcome program which features tailored experience for Chinese travelers During fiscal 2011 the Hotel also

took important steps to further develop its ties to the local Chinese community and the City as part of being good

corporate citizen and to promote new business We continue to be leader in proving that doing good makes good

business sense/cents and that you do not have to be charity to be good or be bad to make money The two are not

mutually exclusive but rather they work hand in hand

During fiscal 2011 we saw significant improvement in the amount of corporate business and leisure travel and the

Hotel was successful in expanding its share of that higher rated business If that trend in the San Francisco market

continues it should translate to an increase in room revenues and profitability and resumption of Partnership

distributions in fiscal 2012 However like all hotels we will remain subject to the uncertain domestic and global

economic environment
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REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS

Under the guidance and strong commitment of our Vice President Real Estate David Gonzalez the Companys real

estate operations remained consistent in the face of highly competitive rental market environment Real estate

revenues increased to $13932000 for the fiscal
year

ended June 30 2011 compared to revenues of $13738000 for

the fiscal year ended June 30 2010 However due to one-time depreciation catch-up of $727000 recorded in the

current year related to the reclassification of the Companys Austin Texas property from discontinued operation to

continuing operations income from real estate operations declined to $3842000 before interest expense in fiscal

2011 from $4677000 before interest expense in fiscal 2010

In January 2011 the Company sold its 132-unit apartment complex located in San Antonio Texas for $5500000 and

recognized gain on the sale of real estate of $3290000 Since the property was classified as held-for-sale that gain

was reflected under discontinued operations in the Companys consolidated statements of operations From the sale

the Company received net proceeds of $2030000 after selling costs and payment of the mortgage note Those

proceeds were placed with third party accommodator for the purpose of executing Section 1031 tax-deferred

exchange which was effectuated when the Company purchased 9-unit beachside apartment building in Marina Del

Rey California for $4000000 in April 2011 While the new property will generate less revenue than the property it

replaced we believe that it is in special location and has greater upside appreciation potential with more stable

rental base

During fiscal 2011 we also refinanced adjustable rate mortgages on several of our California properties with

favorable 10-year fixed rate mortgages to guard against future interest rate risks and inflationary concerns In some

instances the Company was also able to draw some of the equity from those properties to deploy for other

investments and corporate purposes The Company was also able modify its mortgage note on its St Louis Missouri

property effectively reducing the fixed interest rate from 6.16% to 4.85% We are taking advantage of favorable

interest rate environment to refinance other properties with fixed rate mortgages and will continue to review and

analyze the Companys real estate operations to improve occupancy and rental rates control expenses and improve

efficiencies

INVESTMENTS

In fiscal 2011 the Company had income from investments of $13227000 compared to loss of $3344000 from

investment transactions in fiscal 2010 Included in those amounts are net gain on marketable securities of

$2675000 for fiscal 2011 and net loss on marketable securities of $747000 in fiscal 2010 We have always

cautioned that we cannot expect our future results to be as good from year to year We are primarily long term

strategic and opportunistic investors It remains our philosophy to look at investment results over number of years

and not at any one particular snapshot in time We believe that this approach has helped us build greater intrinsic value

for our Company and its shareholders over time

The primary component of the Companys income from investments in fiscal 2011 was from the Companys

significant investment in Comstock Mining Inc Comstock Mining NYSE AMEX LODE precious metals

exploration company As we discussed last year the Company had the foresight to begin investing in Comstock

Mining around 2004 when the company was called Goldspring Inc and gold was trading in the $300 to $400 per

ounce range During the past seven years we took significant steps to realize our vision of having Goldspring acquire

and consolidate as much of the Comstock Lode as possible and begin exploratory drilling with the ultimate goal of

getting into production It was difficult
process

that left your Chairman InterGroup and its subsidiaries Santa Fe

and Portsmouth to provide most of the funding for exploratory drilling and to keep Goldspring afloat Furthermore

due to Comstock Minings troubled fmancial condition in the past most of our investments in that company were

considered impaired under applicable accounting guidance

With our assistance Comstock Mining was able to restructure the company and raise new equity capital On October

20 2010 as part of Comstock Minings debt restructuring the Company and its subsidiaries exchanged

approximately $13231000 in notes convertible notes and debt instruments that it held in Comstock Mining for

13231 shares $1000 stated value of newly created 74% Series A-I Convertible Preferred Stock the A-i

Preferred of Comstock Prior to the exchange those notes and convertible debt instruments had carrying value of
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$1809000 net of impairment adjustments The Company accounted for the transaction as an exchange of its debt

securities and recorded the new instruments A-i Preferred it received based on their fair value The Company

estimated the fair value of the A-i Preferred at $1000 per share which was the stated value of the instrument for

total of $13231000 The fair value of the A-i Preferred had similar value to the Series preferred stock financing

stated value of $1000 per share by which Comstock concurrently raised $35.7 million in new capital from other

investors in October 2010 As result the Company recorded an unrealized gain of $11422000 related to the

preferred stock received as part of the debt restructuring

While the dividend rate of 7.5% and the conversion rights on the Preferred Stock is certainly favorable we also see

the potential for significant growth in the intrinsic value of the business of Comstock Mining With the $35.7 million

in new capital raised by Comstock Mining through the issuance of the Series Preferred Stock that company is better

positioned to have the financial resources to complete its exploratory drilling program fund new land acquisitions and

to ultimately resume mining operations and gold and silver production Having become Chairman of Comstock

Mining in June of 2011 have great confidence in the companys President and CEO Corrado DeGasperis and the

talented team of professionals he has assembled over the last couple of years

CONCLUSION

During fiscal 2011 we made significant strides to improve the Companys operations and financial position By taking

bold steps during difficult economic times to implement innovative strategies to improve the operations and enhance

the competitiveness of our Hotel property we were well positioned to take advantage of the recovery in the San

Francisco hospitality market We aggressively cultivated international business with strong emphasis on the

emerging Chinese market as well as captured greater percentage of higher rated corporate business and leisure

travel

In our real estate operations we were proactive in refinancing some of our apartment complexes with favorable fixed

rate mortgages to guard against future interest rate risks and inflationary concerns We were also successful in selling

one of our Texas properties and effectuating tax deferred exchange for California property with great location

that we believe has better appreciation potential We are continuing in our efforts to improve the operations and

efficiencies of our entire real estate portfolio to make it more productive in the future We are also continuing our

comprehensive evaluations of individual properties to meet and address current economic and market conditions

The Companys investments were also very successful in fiscal 2011 led by our significant investment in Comstock

Mining With the world attempting to recover from the most severe fmancial and economic crisis since the 1930s

depression we continue to be optimistic about our investment in Comstock Mining especially in an economic

environment where money can be printed and its value debased We believe that gold which is finite natural

resource that is difficult to find and replace could become the defacto reserve currency of the world As result of

the financial crisis and economic challenges the world continues to face we believe that gold will remain in high

demand as hedge against inflation and economic uncertainty

would like to thank our dedicated board officers and staff who have all contributed to our success As your

Chairman am looking forward to our future and will continue in our efforts to build greater intrinsic values on per

share basis for our Company and its shareholders

Sincerely

f-iL
John Winfield

Chairman of the Board



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

June 30

2011 2010

Revenues 50214000 44835000

Net income loss 10443000 4575000

Net income loss attributable to noncontrolling interest 1692000 2026000

Net income loss attributable to InterGroup 8751000 2549000

Net income loss per share attributable to InterGroup 3.63 1.07

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

BuRR PILGER MAYER INC

To the Board of Directors and

Shareholders of The Intergroup Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The InterGroup Corporation and its subsidiaries

the Company as of June 30 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders

equity deficit and cash flows for each of the
years

in the two-year period ended June 30 2011 The Companys

management is responsible for these financial statements Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we

engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting Our audit included consideration of

internal control over financial reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companys internal control

over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used

and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We
believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of The InterGroup Corporation and its subsidiaries as of June 30 2011 and 2010 and the results of

their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended June 30 2011 in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

San Francisco California

September 21 2011



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of June30 2011 2010

ASSETS

Investment in hotel net 40143000 41961000

Investment in real estate net 69270000 61184000

Properties held for sale 7193000

Investment in marketable securities 19438000 7712000

Other investments net 17285000 6651000

Cash and cash equivalents 1364000 1140000

Restricted cash 2148000 1641000

Other assets net 4718000 4645000

Total Assets 154366000 132127000

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY DEFICIT

Liabilities

Accounts payable and other liabilities 11347000 10473000

Due to securities brokers 9454000 2235000

Obligations for securities sold 674000 1698000

Other notes payable 2786000 3688000

Mortgage notes payable hotel 45179000 45990000

Mortgage notes payable real estate 72437000 59842000

Mortgage notes payable properties held for sale 10450000

Deferred income taxes 5987000 1135000

Total Liabilities 147864000 135511000

Commitments and Contingencies

Shareholders Equity Deficit

Preferred stock $.01 par value 100000 shares authorized none issued

Common stock $.0l par value 4000000 shares authorized

3322172 and 3290872 issued 2398438 and 2401884 outstanding respectively 33000 33000

Additional paid-in capital 9371000 9109000

Retained earnings 12941000 4190000

Treasury stock at cost 923734 and 888988 shares respectively 10299000 9564000
Total InterGroup Shareholders Equity 12046000 3768000

Noncontrolling interest 5544000 7152000
Total Shareholders equity deficit 6502000 3384000

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity Deficit 154366000 132127000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATI0Ns

For the years ended June30 2011 2010

Revenues

Hotel 36282000 32680000

Real estate 13932000 13738000

Total revenues 50214000 46418000

Costs and operating expenses

Hotel operating expenses 29299000 27223000
Real estate operating expenses 7444000 7101000

Depreciation and amortization expense 6311000 6905000
General and administrative expense 1877000 1814000

Total costs and operating expenses 44931000 43043000

Income from operations 5283000 3375000

Other income expense

Mortgage interest expense 6367000 6492000

Net gain loss on marketable securities 2675000 747000
Unrealized gain on other investments 11565000 181000

Impairment loss on other investments 976000 1805000
Dividend and interest income 1540000 425000

Trading and margin interest expense 1577000 1398000
Net other income expense 6860000 9836000

Income loss before income taxes 12143000 6461000
Income tax expense benefit 3796000 1737000

Loss from continuing operations 8347000 4724000

Discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations 75000 247000

Gain on sale of real estate 3290000

Provision for income tax expense 1269000 98000
Income from discontinued operations 2096000 149000

Net income loss 10443000 4575000

Less Net income loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest 1692000 2026000

Net income loss attributable to InterGroup 8751000 2549000

Net income loss per share from continuing operations

Basic 3.46 1.98

Diluted 3.33 1.98

Net income per share from discontinued operations
__________________ __________________

Basic 0.87 0.06

Diluted 0.84 0.06

Net income loss per share attributable to InterGroup

Basic 3.63 1.07

Diluted 3.49 1.07

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 2411242 2383602

Weighted average number of diluted common shares outstanding 2506888 2383602

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS
EQUITY DEFICIT

Additional InterGroup Total

Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Shareholders Noncontrolling Shareholders

Shares Stock Capital Earnings Stock Equity Interest Equity Deficit

Balance at

June30 2009 3216653 32000 8959000 6739000 9564000 6166000 5126000 1040000

Net loss 2549000 2549000 2026000 4575000

Issuance of stock 6004 72000 72000 72000

Conversion of RSU to stock 65215 1000 1000

Exercise of stock options 3000 36000 36000 36000

Stock options expense 43000 43000 43000

Balance at

June 30 2010 3290872 33000 9109000 4190000 9564000 3768000 7152000 3384000

Net income 8751000 8751000 1692000 10443000

Issuance of stock 4716 72000 72000 72000

Conversion of RSU to stock 17564

Stock options exchanged for sb 6020

Exercise of stock options 3000 38000 38000 38000

Stock options expense 278000 278000 278000

Investment in Santa Fe 126000 126000 84000 210000

Purchase of
treasury stock 735000 735000 735000

Balance at

June 302011 3322172 33000 9371000 12941000 10299000 12046000 554400 6502000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended June30 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 10443000 4575000

Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 6311000 6905000

Gain on sale of real estate 3290000
Net unrealized gain loss on marketable securities 2628000 4740000

Unrealized gain on other investments and derivative instruments 11565000 181000

Impairment loss on other investments 976000 1805000

Gain on insurance recovery 322000 178000
Stock compensation expense 350000 115000

Changes in assets and liabilities

Investment in marketable securities 9098000 1468000

Other assets 133000 257000
Accounts payable and other liabilities 874000 558000

Due to securities broker 7219000 2605000
Obligations for securities sold 1024000 407000
Deferred taxes 4852000 1704000

Net cash provided by operating activities 2965000 5684000

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of real estate 5291000

Investment in hotel 1787000 1329000
Investment in real estate 5218000 161000
Investment in other investments 45000 1708000
Investment in Santa Fe 210000
Restricted cash 507000 43000

Net cash used in investing activities 2476000 3241000

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from line of credit 689000

Borrowings from mortgage notes payable 13654000

Principal payments on mortgage notes payable 12320000 2206000
Payments on other notes payable 902000 846000
Purchase of treasury stock 735000
Proceeds from exercise of options 38000 36000

Net cash used in financing activities 265000 2327000

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 224000 116000

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1140000 1024000

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1364000 1140000

Supplemental information

Income tax paid 116000 103000

Interest paid 7037000 7115000

Conversion of line of credit into other notes payable 2500000

Fixed assets acquired through capital leases 755000

Fixed assets acquired through capital leases 755000

Note payable issued under the installment sale agreement 727000

Fixed assets acquired and note payable assumed under the installment sale agreement 43000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND PRACTICES

Description of the Business

The InterGroup Corporation Delaware corporation InterGroup or the Company was formed to buy develop

operate and dispose of real property and to engage in various investment activities to benefit the Company and its

shareholders

As of June 30 2011 the Company had the power to vote 81% of the voting shares of Santa Fe Financial Corporation

Santa Fe public company OTCBB SFEF This percentage includes the power to vote an approximately 4%

interest in the common stock in Santa Fe owned by the Companys Chairman and President pursuant to voting trust

agreement entered into on June 30 1998

Santa Fes revenue is primarily generated through the management of its 68.8% owned subsidiary Portsmouth

Square Inc Portsmouth public company OTCBB PRSI InterGroup also directly owns approximately 11.7%

of the common stock of Portsmouth Portsmouth has 50.0% limited partnership interest in Justice Investors

Justice the Partnership or the Hotel and serves as one of the two general partners The other general partner

Evon Corporation Evon served as the managing general partner until December 2008 at which time Portsmouth

assumed the role of managing general partner As discussed in Note the fmancial statements of Justice are

consolidated with those of the Company

Justice owns 544-room hotel property located at 750 Kearny Street San Francisco California known as the Hilton

San Francisco Financial District the Hotel and related facilities including five level underground parking garage

The Hotel is operated by the partnership as full service Hilton brand hotel pursuant to Franchise License

Agreement with Hilton Hotels Corporation Justice also has Management Agreement with Prism Hospitality L.P

Prism to perform the day-to-day management functions of the Hotel

Justice leased the parking garage to Evon through September 30 2008 Effective October 2008 Justice and Evon

entered into an Installment Sale Agreement whereby Justice purchased all of Evons right title and interest in the

remaining term of its lease of the parking garage which was to expire on November 30 2010 and other related assets

Justice also agreed to assume Evons contract with Ace Parking Management Inc Ace Parking for the

management of the
garage

and any other liabilities related to the operation of the
garage commencing October

2008 The management agreement with Ace Parking was extended for another 62 months effective November

2010 The Partnership also leases day spa on the lobby level to Tm Spa Portsmouth also receives management fees

as general partner of Justice for its services in overseeing and managing the Partnerships assets Those fees are

eliminated in consolidation

Due to the temporary closing of the Hotel to undergo major renovations from May 2005 until January 2006 to

transition and reposition the Hotel from Holiday Inn to Hilton and the substantial depreciation and amortization

expenses resulting from the renovations and operating losses incurred as the Hotel ramped up operations after

reopening Justice has recorded net losses These losses were anticipated and planned for as part of the Partnerships

renovation and repositioning plan for Hotel and management considers those net losses to be temporary The Hotel

has been generating positive cash flows from operations since June 2006 and net income is expected to improve in the

future especially since depreciation and amortization expenses attributable to the renovation will decrease

substantially For the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 that trend of net losses was reversed as the Company recorded

net income from hotel operations of $512000 Despite the significant downturn in the economy management believes

that the revenues expected to be generated from the Hotel garage and the Partnerships leases will be sufficient to

meet all of the Partnerships current and future obligations and fmancial requirements Management also believes that

there is significant equity in the Hotel to support additional borrowings if necessary

In addition to the operations of the Hotel the Company also generates income from the ownership of real estate

Properties include apartment complexes commercial real estate and two single-family houses as strategic

investments The properties are located throughout the United States but are concentrated in Texas and Southern

California The Company also has investments in unimproved real property The Companys residential rental

properties located in California are managed by professional third party property management company
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Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated fmancial statements include the accounts of the Company and all controlled subsidiaries All

significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated

Investment in Hotel Net

The Hotel property
and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Building improvements are being

depreciated on straight-line basis over their useful lives ranging from to 39 years Furniture fixtures and

equipment are being depreciated on straight-line basis over their useful lives ranging from to years

Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred Costs of significant renewals and improvements are

capitalized and depreciated over the shorter of its remaining estimated useful life or life of the asset The cost of assets

sold or retired and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts any resulting gain or loss is

included in other income expenses

The Company reviews property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate

that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable If the carrying amount of the asset including any

intangible assets associated with that asset exceeds its estimated undiscounted net cash flow before interest the

Partnership will recognize an impairment loss equal to the difference between its carrying amount and its estimated

fair value If impairment is recognized the reduced carrying amount of the asset will be accounted for as its new cost

For depreciable asset the new cost will be depreciated over the assets remaining useful life Generally fair values

are estimated using discounted cash flow replacement cost or market comparison analyses The process of evaluating

for impairment requires estimates as to future events and conditions which are subject to varying market and

economic factors Therefore it is reasonably possible that change in estimate resulting from judgments as to future

events could occur which would affect the recorded amounts of the property
No impairment losses were recorded for

the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010

Investment in Real Estate Net

Rental properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation of rental property is provided on the

straight-line method based upon estimated useful lives of to 40 years for buildings and improvements and to 10

years for equipment Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred and major

improvements are capitalized

The Company also reviews its rental property assets for impainnent No impairment losses on the investment in real

estate have been recorded for the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010

The fair value of the tangible assets of an acquired property which includes land building and improvements is

determined by valuing the property as if they were vacant and incorporates costs during the lease-up periods

considering current market conditions and costs to execute similar leases such lost rental revenue and tenant

improvements The value of tangible assets is depreciated using straight-line method based upon the assets estimated

useful lives

The value of in-place leases is amortized to expense over the expected remaining terms of the associated leases If

lease were to be terminated prior to its stated expiration all unamortized amounts relating to that lease would be

written off in the period that the lease is terminated The value of in-place leases for real estate acquired during the

year ended June 30 2011 was not material

The value of above or below market lease is based on the present value using an interest rate which reflects the risks

associated with the lease acquired of the difference between the contractual amounts to be paid pursuant to the in

place lease and iimanagements estimate of fair market lease rate for the corresponding in-place lease measured over

period that the leases are expected to remain in effect In connection with the Companys acquisition of real

property during the year ended June 30 2011 the Company recorded below-market lease liability of approximately

10
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$427000 and amortizes such amount as an increase to rental income over penod that the leases are expected to remain

in effect which range from year to 15 years

Investment in Marketable Securities

Marketable securities are stated at fair value as determined by the most recently traded price of each security at the

balance sheet date Marketable securities are classified as trading securities with all unrealized gains and losses on the

Companys investment portfolio recorded through the consolidated statements of operations

Other Investments Net

Other investments include non-marketable securities that are carried at cost net of any impairment loss and non-

marketable warrants carried at fair value The Company has no significant influence or control over the entities that

issue these investments These investments are reviewed on periodic basis for other-than-temporary impairment

The Company reviews several factors to determine whether loss is other-than-temporary These factors include but

are not limited to the length of time an investment is in an unrealized loss position ii the extent to which fair

value is less than cost iii the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer and iv our ability to hold the

investment for period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value For the years ended June

30 2011 and 2010 the Company recorded impairment losses related to other investments of $976000 and

$1805000 respectively

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company has investments in stock warrants and has entered into an interest rate swap both of which are

considered derivative instruments

Derivative financial instruments consist of financial instruments or other contracts that contain notional amount and

one or more underlying e.g interest rate security price or other variable require no initial net investment and permit

net settlement Derivative financial instruments may be free-standing or embedded in other financial instruments

Further derivative financial instruments are initially and subsequently measured at fair value on the Companys
consolidated balance sheets

For the investment in stock warrants the Company used the Black-Scholes option valuation model to estimate the fair

value these instruments which requires management to make significant assumptions including trading volatility

estimated terms and risk free rates Estimating fair values of derivative financial instruments requires the

development of significant and subjective estimates that may and are likely to change over the duration of the

instrument with related changes in internal and external market factors In addition option-based models are highly

volatile and sensitive to changes in the trading market price of the underlying common stock which has high-

historical volatility Since derivative financial instruments are initially and subsequently carried at fair values the

Companys consolidated statement of operations will reflect the volatility in these estimate and assumption changes

The Company measures the interest rate swap agreement at fair value at the end of each reporting period The

Company opted not designate the interest rate swap agreement as cash flow hedge hence the change in fair value of

the interest rate swap agreement is reported as unrealized gain or loss in the consolidated statement of operations

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when

purchased and are carried at cost which approximates fair value

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash is comprised of amounts held by lenders for payment of real estate taxes insurance replacement

reserves for the operating properties and tenant security deposits that are invested in certificates of deposit

11
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Other Assets Net

Other assets include accounts receivable prepaid insurance loan fees franchise fees license fees inventory and other

miscellaneous assets Loan fees are stated at cost and amortized over the term of the loan using the effective interest

method Franchise fees are stated at cost and amortized over the life of the agreement 15 years License fees are

stated at cost and amortized over 10 years

Accounts receivable from the Hotel and rental property customers are carried at cost less an allowance for doubtful

accounts that is based on managements assessment of the collectability of accounts receivable The Company

extends unsecured credit to its customers but mitigates the associated credit risk by performing ongoing credit

evaluations of its customers

Due to Securities Broker

The Company may utilize margin for its marketable securities purchases through the use of standard margin

agreements with national brokerage firms Various securities brokers have advanced funds to the Company for the

purchase of marketable securities under standard margin agreements These advanced funds are recorded as liability

Obligation for Securities Sold

Obligation for securities sold represents the fair market value of shares sold with the promise to deliver that security at

some future date and the fair market value of shares underlying the written call options with the obligation to deliver

that security when and if the option is exercised The obligation may be satisfied with current holdings of the same

security or by subsequent purchases of that security Unrealized gains and losses from changes in the obligation are

included in the statement of operations

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities

Accounts payable and other liabilities include trade payables advance deposits and other liabilities

Of the total accounts payable and other liabilities balance of $11347000 $8112000 is accounts payable related to

Justice Investors and its hotel operations

Treasury Stock

The Company records the acquisition of treasury stock under the cost method

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for its assets and liabilities under accounting standards of fair value measurement Under these

standards fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability i.e the

exit price in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date Accounting standards for

fair value measurement establishes hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of

observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used

when available Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability

developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company Unobservable inputs are inputs

that reflect the Companys assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or

liability developed based on the best information available in the circumstances The hierarchy is broken down into

three levels based on the observability of inputs as follows
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Level 1inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active

markets

Level 2inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets

and inputs that are observable for the assets or liability either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of

the financial instruments

Level 3inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value

Revenue Recognition

Room revenue is recognized on the date upon which guest occupies room and/or utilizes the Hotels services Food

and beverage revenues are recognized upon delivery Garage revenue is recognized when guest uses the garage

space

Rental revenue is recognized on the straight-line method of accounting whereby contractual rent payment increases

are recognized evenly over the lease term regardless of when the rent payments are received by Justice The leases

contain provisions for base rent plus percentage of the lessees revenues which are recognized when earned

Revenue recognition from apartment rentals commences when an apartment unit is placed in service and occupied by

rent-paying tenant Apartment units are leased on short-term basis with no lease extending beyond one year

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred Advertising costs were $337000 and $278000 for the years ended June

30 2011 and 2010 respectively

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are calculated under the liability method Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are based

on differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities at the current enacted tax rates

Changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities are included as component of income tax expense Changes in

deferred income tax assets and liabilities attributable to changes in enacted tax rates are charged or credited to income

tax expense in the period of enactment Valuation allowances are established for certain deferred tax assets where

realization is not likely

Assets and liabilities are established for uncertain tax positions taken or positions expected to be taken in income tax

returns when such positions are judged to not meet the more-likely-than-not threshold based on the technical merits

of the positions

Environmental Remediation Costs

Liabilities for environmental remediation costs are recorded and charged to expense when it is probable that

obligations have been incurred and the amounts can be reasonably estimated Recoveries of such costs are recognized

when received As of June 30 2011 and 2010 there were no liabilities for environmental remediation

Earnings Loss Per Share

Basic income loss per share is computed by dividing net income loss available to common stockholders by the

weighted average number of common shares outstanding The computation of diluted income loss per share is

similar to the computation of basic earnings per share except that the weighted-average number of common shares is

increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if potential dilutive

common shares had been issued The Companys only potentially dilutive common shares are stock options and

restricted stock units RSUs As of June 30 2011 the Company had 95646 stock options and RSUs that were
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considered potentially dilutive conmion shares As of June 30 2010 the Company had 75000 stock options and

RSUs that were considered potentially dilutive common shares The basic and diluted earnings per share were the

same for the year ended June 30 2010 because of the Companys net loss from continuing operations

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets liabilities revenues
and expenses Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the date of the financial

statements Accordingly upon settlement actual results may differ from estimated amounts

Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU
2010-06 Improving Disclosures About Fair Value Measurements Effective January 2010 ASU 2010-06 requires
the separate disclosure of significant transfers into and out of the Level and Level categories and the reasons for

such transfers and also requires fair value measurement disclosures for each class of assets and liabilities as well as

disclosures about valuation techniques and inputs used for recurring and nonrecurring Level and Level fair value

measurements The Company adopted this amendment during fiscal year 2010 which resulted in additional

disclosures in the Companys consolidated financial statements Effective in fiscal years beginning after December 15
2010 ASU 2010-06 also requires Level disclosure of purchases sales issuances and settlements activity on gross
rather than net basis

The Consolidation Topic of the FASB ASC 810 provides new accounting provision regarding the consolidation of

variable interest entities VIEs The new accounting provision modifies the existing quantitative guidance used in

determining the primary beneficiary of VIE by requiring entities to qualitatively assess whether an enterprise is

primary beneficiary based on whether the entity has power over the significant activities of the VIE and ii an

obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could be potentially significant to the VIE
Additionally the accounting provision requires an ongoing reconsideration of the primary beneficiary and provides

framework for the events that triggers reassessment of whether an entity is VIE The new accounting update

became effective for the Company on July 2010 The adoption of this guidance did not have material effect on the

Companys consolidated financial statements

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-04 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and

Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRSs International Financial Reporting Standard ASU 2011-04

attempts to improve the comparability of fair value measurements disclosed in financial statements prepared in

accordance with U.S GAAP and IFRS Amendments in ASU 2011-04 clarify the intent of the application of existing

fair value measurement and disclosure requirements as well as change certain measurement requirements and

disclosures ASU 2011-04 is effective for the Company beginning January 2012 and will be applied on

prospective basis We do not believe that the adoption of ASU 2011-04 will have material effect on our consolidated

financial statements

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-05 Presentation of Comprehensive Income ASU 2011-05 changes the

way other comprehensive income OCI appears within the financial statements Companies will be required to

show net income OCI and total comprehensive income in one continuous statement or in two separate but

consecutive statements Components of OCI may no longer be presented solely in the statement of changes in

shareholders equity Any reclassification between OCT and net income will be presented on the face of the financial

statements ASU 2011-05 is effective for the Company beginning January 2012 The adoption of ASU 2011-05 will

not impact the measurement of net income or other comprehensive income
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NOTE 2- JUSTICE INVESTORS

On July 14 2005 the FASB issued Staff Position FSP SOP 78-9-1 Interaction of AICPA Statement of Position 78-

and EITF Issue No 04-5 which was codified into ASC Topic 910-810 Real Estate General Consolidation to

amend the guidance in AICPA Statement of Position 78-9 Accounting for Investments in Real Estate Ventures

SOP 78-9 to be consistent with the consensus in Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No 04-5 Determining Whether

General Partner or General Partners as Group Controls Limited Partnership or Similar Entity When the Limited

Partners Have Certain Rights which was codified into ASC 810-20 Consolidation eliminated the concept of

important rightsASC Topic 970-810 and replaces it with the concepts of kick out rights and substantive

participating rights In accordance with guidance set forth in ASC Topic 970-20 Portsmouth has applied the

principles of accounting applicable for investments in subsidiaries due to its substantial limited partnership interest

and general partnership rights and has consolidated the financial statements of Justice with those of the Company

effective as of July 2006 For the years
ended June 30 2011 and 2010 the results of operations for Justice were

consolidated with those of the Company

On December 2008 Portsmouth and Evon as the two general partners of Justice entered into 2008 Amendment

to the Limited Partnership Agreement the Amendment that provides for change in the respective roles of the

general partners Pursuant to the Amendment Portsmouth assumed the role of Managing General Partner and Evon

continued on as the Co-General Partner of Justice The Amendment was ratified by approximately 98% of the limited

partnership interests The Amendment also provides that future amendments to the Limited Partnership Agreement

may be made only upon the consent of the general partners and at least seventy five percent 75% of the interests of

the limited partners Consent of at least 75% of the interests of the limited partners will also be required to remove

general partner pursuant to the Amendment

Effective November 30 2010 the general and limited partners of Justice Investors entered into an Amended and

Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership which was approved and ratified by more than 98% of the limited

partnership interests of Justice The Partnership Agreement was amended and restated in its entirety to comply with

the new provisions of the California Corporations Code known as the Uniform Limited Partnership Act of 2008

The amendment did not result in any material modifications of the rights or obligations of the general and limited

partners

Concurrent with the Amendment to the Limited Partnership Agreement new General Partner Compensation

Agreement the Compensation Agreement was entered into on December 2008 among Justice Portsmouth and

Evon to terminate and supersede all prior compensation agreement for the general partners Pursuant to the

Compensation Agreement the general partners of Justice will be entitled to receive an amount equal to 1.5% of the

gross
annual revenues of the Partnership as defined less $75000 to be used as contribution toward the cost of

Justice engaging an asset manager In no event shall the annual compensation be less than minimum base of

approximately $285000 with eighty percent 80% of that amount being allocated to Portsmouth for its services as

managing general partner and twenty percent 20% allocated to Evon as the co-general partner Compensation earned

by the general partners in each calendar year
in excess of the minimum base will be payable in equal fifty percent

50% shares to Portsmouth and Evon
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NOTE 3- INVESTMENT IN HOTEL NET

Investment in hotel consisted of the following as of

June 30 2011

Land

Furniture and equipment

Building and improvements

Accumulated

Depreciation

Depreciation expense for the
years

ended June 30 2011 and 2010 were $3605000 and $4890000 respectively

The Partnership leases certain equipment under agreements that are classified as capital leases The cost of equipment

under capital leases was $2131000 and $2108000 at June 30 2011 and 2010 respectively The accumulated

depreciation on capital leases was $1405000 and $1046000 as of June 30 2011 and 2010 respectively

NOTE 4-INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE NET

At June 30 2011 the Companys investment in real estate consisted of twenty-four properties located throughout the

United States These properties include eighteen apartment complexes two single-family houses as strategic

investments and two commercial real estate properties one of which served as the Companys corporate headquarters

through October 2009 The Company also owns two unimproved real estate properties located in Austin Texas and

Maui Hawaii

Investment in real estate included the following

As of June 30
Land

Buildings improvements and equipment

Accumulated depreciation

2011

26921000

72645000

30296000

69270000

2010

25521000

68525000

27651000

66395000

Depreciation expense from continuing operations for the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 was $2646000 and

$1960000 respectively

Accumulated

Deureciation

Net Book

Value

17075000

20467000

37542000

June 30 2010

Land

Furniture and equipment

Building and improvements

Cost

2738000

19584000

55363000

77685000

Cost

2738000

18393000

54782000

75913000

2738000

2509000

34896000

40143000

Net Book

Value

14710000

19242000

33952000

2738000

3683000

35540000

41961000
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Three of the Companys properties located in Texas sustained damages due to hailstorm and fire during fiscal 2010

The Companys properties are covered by insurance The Company estimated and reduced the canying value of the

properties damaged by approximately $651000 during the year ended June 30 2010 As of June 30 2010 the

Company received $147000 from the insurance company for one of the properties The Company also recorded an

insurance receivable totaling $682000 which is included in the Other Assets net for insurance claim made for the

other two properties because the realizability of such amount was probable as of June 30 2010 The proceeds and

receivable from insurance totaling $829000 exceeded the amount of property damage by $178000 The excess

amount was recorded as net gain from insurance recovery and was included in the Real estate operating expenses in

the consolidated statements of operations during the year ended June 30 2010 During the year ended June 30 2011

the Company received additional proceeds of $322000 related to the storm damage suffered during the fiscal year

2010 This amount was recorded as part of real estate revenue in fiscal 2011

NOTE 5- PROPERTY HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In January 2011 the Company sold its 32-unit apartment complex located in San Antonio Texas for $5500000 and

recognized gain on the sale of real estate of $3290000 The Company received net proceeds of $2030000 after

selling costs and the pay-off of the related outstanding mortgage note payable of $3215000 The proceeds were

placed with third party
accommodator included as part of other assets for the purpose

of executing Section 1031

tax-deferred exchange for another property In April 2011 the Company purchased 9-unit beachside apartment

complex located in Marina Del Rey California for $4000000 to effectuate that exchange As part of the purchase

the Company obtained 10-year mortgage note payable in the amount of $1487000 The interest rate on the loan is

fixed at 5.60% per annum with monthly principal and interest payments based on 30-year amortization schedule

The note matures in May 2021 As part of the purchase the Company recorded an asset of $427000 related to

having in-place apartment leases and $427000 liability related to having in-place leases that were below market

leases in rent control environment The asset will be amortized over 27.5
years

and the liability over 15 years

In June 2011 the Company re-evaluated one of its propertys that was previously classified as held for sale and

concluded that the property no longer met the criteria for being classified as held for sale As the result the property

was reclassified to operations and depreciation catch-up of $726000 was recorded in the consolidated statement of

operations As of June 30 2011 the Company did not have any property that was classified as held for sale

The gain on the sale of real estate and the revenues and expenses from the operation of the property that was sold in

January 2011 are reported as income from discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations for the

respective periods The revenues and expenses are summarized as follows

For the years endedJune 30 2011 2010

Revenues 539000 972000

Expenses 464000 725000
Income from discontinued operations 75000 247000

NOTE 6- INVESTMENT IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

The Companys investment in marketable securities consists primarily of corporate equities The Company has also

invested in corporate bonds and income producing securities which may include interests in real estate based

companies and REITs where financial benefit could insure to its shareholders through income andlor capital gain

At June 30 2011 and 2010 all of the Companys marketable securities are classified as trading securities The change

in the unrealized gains and losses on these investments are included in earnings Trading securities are summarized as

follows
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Gross Gross Net Fair

Investment Cost Unrealized Gain Unrealized Loss Unrealized Gain Value

As of June 30 2011

Corporate

Equities 15288000 6147000 1997000 4150000 19438000

As of June 30 2010

Corporate 6311000

Equities

872000 1401000

As of June 30 2011 and 2010 the Company had $969000 and $679000 respectively of unrealized losses related to

securities held for over one year

Net gain loss on marketable securities on the statement of operations is comprised of realized and unrealized gains

losses Below is the composition of the two components for the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 respectively

For the year ended June 30
Realized gain on marketable securities

Unrealized gain loss on marketable securities

2011

47000

2628000

2010

3993000

4740000

Net gain loss on marketable securities 2675000 747000

NOTE 7- OTHER INVESTMENTS NET

The Company may also invest with the approval of the Securities Investment Committee and other Company

guidelines in private investment equity funds and other unlisted securities such as convertible notes through private

placements Those investments in non-marketable securities are carried at cost on the Companys balance sheet as part

of other investments net of other than temporary impairment losses

Other investments net consist of the following

Type

Preferred stock Comstock at cost

Private equity hedge fund at cost

Corporate debt and equity instruments at cost

Warrants at fair value

June 30 2011

13231000

2736000

569000

749000

17285000

June 30 2010

3712000

2358000

581000

6651000

During the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 the Company recorded impairment losses of $976000 and

$1805000 respectively

2273000 7712000
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On October 20 2010 as part of debt restructuring of one of its investments the Company exchanged approximately

$13231000 in notes convertible notes and debt instruments that it held in Comstock Mining Inc Comstock
OTCBB LODE for 13231 shares $1000 stated value of newly created 1/2% Series A-i Convertible Preferred

Stock the A-i Preferred of Comstock Prior to the exchange those notes and convertible debt instruments had

carrying value of $1809000 net of impairment adjustments The Company accounted for the transaction as an

exchange of its debt securities and recorded the new instruments A-i Preferred received based on their fair value

The Company estimated the fair value of the A-i Preferred at $1000 per share which was the stated value of the

instrument for total of $13231000 The fair value of the A-i Preferred had similar value to the Series

preferred stock financing stated value of $1000 per share by which Comstock concurrently raised $35.7 million in

new capital from other investors in October 2010 The Company recorded an unrealized gain of $11422000 related

to the preferred stock received as part of the debt restructuring This unrealized gain is included in the net unrealized

gain on other investments in the Companys consolidated statements of operations for the year ended June 30 2011

The Companys Chairman and President also exchanged approximately $7681000 in notes and convertible notes

held personally by him for 7681 shares of A-i Preferred Together the Company and Mr Winfield will constitute all

of the holders of the A-i Preferred

Each share of A-i Preferred has stated value of $1000 per
share and liquidation and change of control preference

equal to the stated value plus accrued and unpaid dividends Commencing January 2011 the holders are entitled to

semi-annual dividends at rate of 7.5% per annum payable in cash common stock preferred stock or any

combination of the foregoing at the election of Comstock At the holders election each share of A-i Preferred is

convertible at fixed conversion rate subject to anti-dilution into 1536 shares of common stock of Comstock

therefore converting into common stock at conversion price of $0.65 10 Each share of A-I Preferred will entitle the

holder to vote with the holders of common stock as single class on all matters submitted to the vote of the common

stock on an as converted basis and for purposes of voting only each share of A-i Preferred shall be entitled to five

times the number of votes per common share to which it would otherwise be entitled Each share of A-i Preferred

shall entitle its holder to one vote in any matter submitted to vote of holders of Preferred Stock voting as

separate class The A-i Preferred in conjunction with the other series of newly created Preferred Stock of Comstock

also has certain rights requiring consent of the Preferred Stock holders for Comstock to take certain corporate and

business actions The holders will have registration rights with respect to the shares of common stock underlying the

A-i Preferred and also preemptive rights The foregoing description of the A-i Preferred and the specific terms of the

A-i Preferred is qualified in its entirety by reference to the provisions of the Series Securities Purchase Agreement

the Certificate of Designation of Preferences and Rights and Limitations of 1/2% Series A-i Convertible Preferred

Stock and the Registration Rights Agreement for the Series Preferred Stock which were filed as exhibits to the

Companys Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 20 2010

As of June 30 2011 and 2010 the Company had investments in corporate debt and equity instruments which had

attached warrants that were considered derivative instruments These warrants have an allocated cost basis of

$400000 as of June 30 2011 and 2010 and fair value of $749000 and $581000 as of June 30 2011 and 2010

respectively During the year ended June 30 2011 and 2010 the Company had an unrealized gain of $143000 and

$181000 respectively related to these warrants

NOTE 8- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The carrying values of the Companys non-financial instruments approximate fair value due to their short maturities

i.e accounts receivable other assets accounts payable and other liabilities due to securities broker and obligations

for securities sold or the nature and terms of the obligation i.e other notes payable and mortgage notes payable
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The assets measured at fair value on recurring basis are as follows

As ofJune 30 2011

Assets Level Level2 Level3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents 1364000 1364000

Restricted cash 2148000 2148000

Other investments warrants 749000 749000

Investment in marketable securities

Basic materials 4978000 4978000

Services 3740000 3740000

Investment funds 3358000 3358000

Financial services 2012000 2012000

REITs and real estate companies 2851000 2851000

Other 2499000 2499000

19438000 19438000

22950000 749000 23699000

As of June 30 2010

Assets Level Level2 Level3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents 1140000 1140000

Restricted cash 1641000 1641000

Other investments warrants 581000 581000

Investment in marketable securities

Investment funds 3271000 3271000

REITs 1946000 1946000

Healthcare 668000 668000

Financial services 551000 551000

Other 1276000
___________

1276000

7712000 ___________
7712000

10493000 581000 11074000

The fair values of investments in marketable securities are determined by the most recently traded price of each

security at the balance sheet date The fair value of the warrants was determined based upon Black-Scholes option

valuation model

Financial assets that are measured at fair value on non-recurring basis and are not included in the tables above

include Other investments in non-marketable securities that were initially measured at cost and have been written

down to fair value as result of impairment or adjusted to record the fair value of new instruments received i.e

preferred shares in exchange for old instruments i.e debt instruments The following table shows the fair value

hierarchy for these assets measured at fair value on non-recurring basis as follows

Net gain for the year

Assets Level Level Level June 30 2011 ended June 30 2011

Othernon-marketableinvestments $16536000 16536000 10446000

Net loss for theyear

Assets Level Level Level June 30 2010 ended June 30 2010

Other non-marketable investments 6070000 6070000 1805000
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Other investments in non-marketable securities are carried at cost net of any impairment loss The Company has no

significant influence or control over the entities that issue these investments These investments are reviewed on

periodic basis for other-than-temporary impairment The Company reviews several factors to determine whether loss

is other-than-temporary These factors include but are not limited to the length of time an investment is in an

unrealized loss position ii the extent to which fair value is less than cost iii the fmancial condition and near term

prospects of the issuer and iv our ability to hold the investment for period of time sufficient to allow for any

anticipated recovery in fair value

NOTE 9- OTHER ASSETS NET

Other assets consist of the following as of June 30

Accounts receivable net

Prepaid expenses

Inventory

Miscellaneous assets net

Total other assets

2011

1683000

939000

543000

1553000

4718000

2010

1573000

1088000

534000

1450000

4645000

Amortization expense of loan fees and franchise costs for the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 was $60000 and

$55000 respectively

NOTE 10-OTHER NOTES PAYABLE AND LP4E OF CREDIT

The Partnership had $2500000 unsecured revolving line of credit facility with bank that was to mature on April

30 2010 Borrowings under that line of credit bore interest at prime plus 3.0% per annum or based on the Wall Street

Journal Prime Rate 3.25% plus 3.0% per annum floating but subject to minimum floor rate at 5.0% per annum
Borrowings under the line of credit were subject to certain financial covenants which are measured annually at June

30th and December 31st based on the credit arrangement Effective April 29 2010 the Partnership obtained

modification from the bank which converted its revolving line of credit facility to term loan The Partnership also

obtained waiver of any prior noncompliance with fmancial covenants

The modification provides that Justice will pay the $2500000 balance on its line of credit facility over period of

four years to mature on April 30 2014 This term loan calls for monthly principal and interest payments calculated

on six-year amortization schedule with interest only from May 2010 to August 31 2010 Pursuant to the

modification the annual floating interest rate was reduced by 0.5% to the WSJ Prime Rate plus 2.5% with

minimum floor rate of 5.0% per annum The modification includes fmancial covenants written to reflect the current

economic conditions that all hotels are facing The covenants include specific financial ratios and return to minimum

profitability after June 30 2011 Management believes that the partnership has the ability to meet the specific

covenants The Partnership was in compliance with the covenants as of June 30 2011 The loan continues as

unsecured The outstanding balance was $2202000 and $2500000 as of June 30 2011 and 2010 respectively the

interest rate was 5.75%

The Partnership has short-term fmancing agreements with financial institution for the payment of its general

property and workers compensation insurance The notes payable under these financing agreements bear interest at

3.8% per annum and payable in equal monthly installments principal and interest through December 2011 The notes

payable at June 30 2011 and 2010 were $112000 and $176000 respectively

As of June 30 2010 the Partnership also had note payable due to Evon Corporation related party in the amount

of$143000 This note had an annual fixed interest rate of 2.5% and matured on November 15 2010 As of June 30

2010 the Partnership also had note payable to Ace Parking Management Inc in the amount of $36000 This note

had an annual fixed interest rate of 8.5% and matured on October 31 2010
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Justice leases certain equipment under capital leases expiring in various
years through 2014 The capital lease

obligations at June 30 2011 and 2010 were $472000 and $833000 respectively

Minimum future lease payments for assets under capital leases as of June 30 2011 are as follows

For the year ending June 30

2012 213000

2013 199000

2014 140000

2015 9000

Total minimum lease payments 561000

Less interest on capital leases 89000

Present value of future minimum lease payments 472000

NOTE 11- MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE

Mortgage notes payable secured by real estate and hotel as of June 30 2011 and 2010 are summarized as follows

As of June30 2011

Number Note Note

Property of Units Origination Date Matunty Date Mortgage Balance Interest Rate

SFHotel S44rooms July 2005 August 2015 27176000 5.22%

SFHotel 544rooms March 2005 August 2015 18003000 6.42%

Mortgage notes payable hotel 45179000

Austin 249 June 2003 July 2023 7041000 5.46%

Florence 157 June 2005 July 2014 3950000 4.96%

Las Colinas 358 April 2004 May 2013 18051000 4.99%

Morris County 151 April 2003 May 2013 9220000 5.43%

St Louis 264 May 2008 May 2013 5878000 4.95%

Los Angeles 24 May 2001 April 2031 1540000 2.49%

Los Angeles September 2000 August 2030 390000 7.59%

Los Angeles January 2002 January 2032 398000 6.45%

Los Angeles February 2001 December 2030 426000 8.44%

Los Angeles 31 January 2010 December 2020 5745000 4.85%

Los Angeles 30 August 2007 September 2022 6699000 5.97%

Los Angeles 27 November 2010 December 2020 3236000 4.85%

LosAngeles 14 April 2011 March 2021 1850000 5.89%

Los Angeles 12 November 2003 December 2018 934000 6.38%

Los Angeles April 2011 May 2021 1485000 5.60%

Los Angeles April 2011 March 2021 1262000 5.89%

Los Angeles May 2001 November 2029 506000 2.49%

Los Angeles November 2003 December 2018 965000 6.38%

Los Angeles November 2003 December 2018 657000 6.38%

Los Angeles October 2003 November 2033 459000 4.50%

LosAngeles Office March 2009 March 2014 1118000 5.02%

Los Angeles Office September 2000 December 2013 627000 6.00%

Mortgage notes payable real estate 72437000
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AsofJune3O2010

Number Note Note

Property of Units Origination Date Maturity Date Mortgage Balance Interest Rate

SF Hotel 544 rooms July 2005 August 2015 27723000 5.22%

SF Hotel 544 rooms March 2005 August 2015 18267000 6.42%

Mortgage notes payable hotel 45990000

Austin 249 June 2003 July 2023 7202000 5.46%

Florence 157 June 2005 July 2014 4018000 4.96%

Las Colinas 358 April 2004 May 2013 18414000 4.99%

Morris County 151 April 2003 May 2013 9420000 5.43%

St Louis 264 May 2008 May 2013 5989000 6.16%

Los Angeles 24 May 2001 April 2031 1578000 7.15%

Los Angeles September 2000 August 2030 399000 7.59%

Los Angeles January 2002 January 2032 407000 6.45%

Los Angeles February 2001 December 2030 435000 8.44%

Los Angeles 31 September 2003 August 2033 3608000 4.35%

Los Angeles 30 August 2007 September 2022 6787000 5.97%

Los Angeles 27 October 1999 October 2029 1660000 7.73%

Los Angeles 14 December 1999 November 2029 984000 7.89%

Los Angeles 12 November 2003 December 2018 952000 6.38%

Los Angeles February 2000 December 2029 735000 7.95%

Los Angeles May 2001 November 2029 518000 7.00%

Los Angeles November 2003 December 2018 984000 6.38%

Los Angeles November 2003 December 2018 669000 6.38%

Los Angeles October 2003 November 2033 470000 5.75%

Los Angeles Office March 2009 March 2014 1155000 5.02%

Los Angeles Office September 2000 December 2013 660000 6.71%

Mortgage notes payable real estate 67044000

132 December 2008 October 2011 5.00%3248000

3248000

On July 27 2005 Justice entered into first mortgage loan with The Prudential Insurance Company of America in

principal amount of $30000000 the Prudential Loan The term of the Prudential Loan is for 120 months at

fixed interest rate of 5.22% per annum The Prudential Loan calls for monthly installments of principal and interest in

the amount of approximately $165000 calculated on 30-year amortization schedule The Loan is collateralized by

first deed of trust on the Partnerships Hotel property including all improvements and personal property thereon and

an assignment of all present and future leases and rents The Prudential Loan is without recourse to the limited and

general partners of Justice

In March 2007 Justice entered into second mortgage loan with The Prudential Insurance Company of America the

Second Prudential Loan in principal amount of $19000000 The term of the Second Prudential Loan is for

approximately 100 months and matures on August 2015 the same date as the Partnerships first mortgage loan with

Prudential The Second Prudential Loan is at fixed interest rate of 6.42% per annum and calls for monthly

installments of principal and interest in the amount of approximately $119000 calculated on 30-year amortization

schedule The Loan is collateralized by second deed of trust on the Partnerships Hotel property including all

improvements and personal property thereon and an assignment of all present and future leases and rents The Loan is

without recourse to the limited and general partners of Justice From the proceeds of the Second Prudential Loan
Justice retired its existing line of credit facility with United Commercial Bank UCB paying off the outstanding

balance of principal and interest of approximately $16403000 on March 27 2007

Mortgage notes payable properties held for sale
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In February 2011 the Company refinanced its $715000 adjustable rate mortgage note payable on its 9-unit apartment

building located in Los Angeles California for new 10-year fixed rate mortgage in the amount of $1265000 The

interest rate on the new loan is fixed at 5.89% per annum with monthly principal and interest payments based on 30-

year amortization schedule The note matures in March 2021 The Company received net proceeds of approximately

$367000 from the refinancing

In February 2011 the Company refinanced its $958000 adjustable rate mortgage note payable on its 14-unit

apartment building located in Los Angeles California for new 10-year fixed rate mortgage in the amount of

$1855000 The interest rate on the new loan is fixed at 5.89% per annum with monthly principal and interest

payments based on 30-year amortization schedule The note matures in March 2021 The Company received net

proceeds of approximately $687000 from the refinancing

In December 2010 the Company modified its $5932000 mortgage note payable on the property located in St Louis

Missouri Prior to the modification of the mortgage note the Company paid fixed rate of 6.16% Upon

modification the interest rate was based upon LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate plus 3.5% Concurrent to

the modification of the note the Company entered into rate swap agreement in order to settle the variable rate i.e

LIBOR into fixed rate of 1.35% thereby allowing the Company to pay total fixed interest rate of 4.85% The

swap agreement matures in May 2013 swap is contractual agreement to exchange interest rate payments Under

the swap agreement the Company agrees to pay the bank counterparty fixed rate and the bank agrees to pay the

Company floating rate The interest rate swap agreement is being measured at fair value but was not designated by

the Company as cash flow hedge Should the Company terminate the swap contract prematurely it would be

required to pay the fair value of the swap valued at $91000 as of June 30 2011 which is recorded as liability by the

Company under accounts payable and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet The change in the fair

value of the instrument is recognized and recorded in the net unrealized gain loss on other investments and

derivative instruments in the consolidated statement of operations

In November 2010 the Company refinanced its $1641000 adjustable rate mortgage note payable on its 27-unit

apartment building located in Los Angeles California for new 10-year fixed rate mortgage in the amount of

$3260000 The interest rate on the new loan is fixed at 4.85% per annum with monthly principal and interest

payments based on 30-year amortization schedule The note matures in December 2020 The Company received net

proceeds of approximately $1507000 from the refmancing

In November 2010 the Company also refinanced its $3569000 adjustable rate mortgage note payable on its 31-unit

apartment building located in Los Angeles California for new 10-year fixed rate mortgage in the amount of

$5787000 The interest rate on the new loan is fixed at 4.85% per annum with monthly principal and interest

payments based on 30-year amortization schedule The note matures in December 2020 The Company received net

proceeds of approximately $2078000 from the refmancing

Future minimum payments for all notes payable are as follows

For the year ending June 30
2012 3056000

2013 3000000

2014 3379000

2015 1794000

2016 42243000

Thereafter 66930000

120402000
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NOTE 12 HOTEL RENTAL INCOME

The Partnership has lease agreement with Ti-u Spa LLC Ti-u Spa for the use of the
spa

facilities expiring in May
2013 The lease provides the Partnership with minimum monthly payments of $14000 subject to increases based on

the Consumer Price Index Minimum future rentals to be received under the terms of this lease as of June 30 2011 are

as follows

For the year ending June 30

2012

2013

165000

151000

316000

NOTE 13- MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

On February 2007 the Partnership entered into an agreement with Prism to manage and operate the Hotel as its

agent The agreement is effective for term of ten years unless the agreement is extended or earlier terminated as

provided in the agreement Under the management agreement the Partnership is required to pay the base

management fees of 2.5% of gross operating revenues of the Hotel i.e room food and beverage and other operating

departments for the fiscal year However 0.75% of the stated management fee is due only if the partially adjusted

net operating income of the hotel for the fiscal year exceeds the amount of the Hotel return for the fiscal year Prism

is also entitled to an incentive management fee if certain milestones are accomplished No incentive fees were paid

during the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 In support of the Partnerships efforts to reduce costs in this difficult

economic environment Prism agreed to reduce its management fees by fifty percent from January 2009 through

December 31 2010 after which the original fee provision went back into effect Management fees paid to Prism

during the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 were $469000 and $246000 respectively

NOTE 14-INCOME TAXES

The provision for the Companys income tax benefit expense is comprised of the following

Continuing Discontinued Continuing

Operations Operations Total Operations

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations differs from the amount of income tax computed by

applying the federal statutory income tax rate to income loss before taxes as result of the following differences

For the years ended June 30 2011

Federal

Current tax expense

Deferred taxbenefit

State

Current taxexpense

Deferred taxbenefit

2010

50000

2893000

2943000

139000

714000

853000

1144000

1144000

24000

101000

125000

50000

4037000

4087000

163000

815000

978000

Discontinued

Operations

75000

75000

23000

23000

14000

1485000

1499000

56000

294000

238000

Total

14000

1410000

1424000

79000

294000

215000

3796000 1269000 5065000 1737000 98000 1639000
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For the years ended June 30

Statutory federal tax rate

State income taxes net of federal tax benefit

Dividend received deduction

Noncontrolling interest

Valuation allowance

Other

2011

4128000

638000

349000

64000
733000

176000

3796000

2010

2128000

192000

69000

419000

237000

4000

1737000

The components of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are as follows

Deferred tax assets

Net operating loss carryforwards

Capital loss carryforwards

Investment impairment reserve

Accruals and reserves

Valuation allowance

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred gains on real estate sale

Unrealized gains on marketable securities

Depreciation and amortization

Equity earnings

State taxes

Net deferred tax liability

June 30 2011 June 30 2010

9343000 9819000

615000 615000

1803000 1543000

500000 70000

752000 484000

11509000 10563000

9780000 8814000
6426000 516000

246000 286000

1492000 1683000
44000 399000

17496000 11698000

5987000 1135000

As of June 30 2011 the Company had net operating losses NOLs of $22591000 and $21282000 for federal and

state purposes respectively Below is the break-down of the NOLs for Intergroup Santa Fe and Portsmouth The

carryforward expires in varying amounts through the year 2029

InterGroup

Santa Fe

Portsmouth ________________ ________________

The Company is subject to U.S federal income tax as well as to income tax in multiple state jurisdictions Federal

income tax returns of the Company are subject to IRS examination for the 2007 through 2010 tax years State income

tax returns are subject to examination for the 2006 through 2010 tax years

Utilization of the net operating loss carryover may be subject substantial annual limitation if it should be determined

that there has been change in the ownership of more than 50 percent of the value of the Companys stock pursuant

to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and similar state provisions The annual limitation may result in

the expiration of net operating loss carryovers before utilization

Federal

5063000

5493000

12035000

22591000

State

7278000

2180000

11824000

21282000
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NOTE 15- SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates in three reportable segments the operation of the hotel Hotel Operations the operation of

its multi-family residential properties Real Estate Operations and the investment of its cash in marketable

securities and other investments Investment Transactions These three operating segments as presented in the

financial statements reflect how management internally reviews each segments performance Management also

makes operational and strategic decisions based on this information

Information below represents reported segments for the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 Operating income loss
from hotel operations consist of the operation of the hotel and operation of the garage Operating income for rental

properties consist of rental income Operating income for investment transactions consist of net investment gain loss
and dividend and interest income

As of and for the year Hotel Real Estate Investment Discontinued
ended June 30 2011 Operations Operations Transactions Other Subtotal Operations Total
Revenues 36282000 13.932000 50214000 539000 50753000
Operating expenses 32964000 10090000 1877000 44931000 341000 45272000
Income loss from operations 3318000 3842000 1877000 5283000 198000 5481.000
Gain on sale of real estate 3290000 3290000
Interest expense 2806000 3561000 6367000 123000 6490000
income from investments 13227000 13227000 13227000
Income tax expense 3796000 3.796.000 1269000 5065000
Net income loss 512000 281000 13227000 5673000 8347000 2096000 10443000
Total assets 40143000 69270000 36723000 8230.000 154366000 154366000

As of and for the year Hotel Real Estate Investment Discontinued
ended June 30 2010 OperatIons Operations Transactions Other Total Operations Total

Revenues 32680000 13738000 46418000 972000 47390000
Operating expenses 32168000 9061000 1814000 43043000 537000 43580000
income loss from operations 512000 4677000 1814000 3375000 435000 3810000
Interest expense 2902000 3590.000 6492000 188000 6680000
Loss from investments 3344000 3344000 3344000
Income tax benefit expense 1737000 1737000 98000 1639000
Net income loss 2390000 1087000 3344000 77000 4724.000 149000 4575000
Total assets 41961000 66395000 14363000 7426000 130145000 1982000 132127000

NOTE 16- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The Company follows the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 123 Revised Share-Based Payments

SFAS No 123W which was primarily codified into ASC Topic 718 Compensation Stock Compensation
which addresses accounting for equity-based compensation arrangements including employee stock options and

restricted stock units

The Company currently has three equity compensation plans each of which has been approved by the Companys
stockholders The InterGroup Corporation 2008 Restricted Stock Unit Plan the 2008 RSU Plan the InterGroup

Corporation 2007 Stock Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors the 2007 Stock Plan and the Intergroup
2010 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan are described below Any outstanding options issued under the Key
Employee Plan or the Non-Employee Director Plan remain effective in accordance with their terms

Intergroup Corporation 2010 Omnibus Employee Incentive Plan

On February 24 2010 the shareholders of the Company approved The Intergroup Corporation 2010 Omnibus

Employee Incentive Plan the 2010 Incentive Plan which was formally adopted by the Board of Directors

following the annual meeting of shareholders The Company believes that such awards better align the interests of its

employees with those of its shareholders Option awards are generally granted with an exercise price equal to the

market price of the Companys stock at the date of grant those option awards generally vest based on years of

continuous service Certain option and share awards provide for accelerated vesting if there is change in control as

defmed in the 2010 Incentive Plan The 2010 Incentive plan authorizes total of up to 200000 shares of common
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stock to be issued as equity compensation to officers and employees of the Company in an amount and in manner to

be determined by the Compensation Committee in accordance with the terms of the 2010 Incentive Plan The 2010

Incentive Plan authorizes the awards of several types
of equity compensation including stock options stock

appreciation rights performance awards and other stock based compensation The 2010 Incentive Plan will expire on

February 23 2020 if not terminated sooner by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Compensation

Committee Any awards issued under the 2010 Incentive Plan will expire under the terms of the grant agreement

On March 16 2010 the Compensation Committee authorized the grant of 100000 stock options to the Companys

Chairman President and Chief Executive John Winfield to purchase up to 100000 shares of the Companys

common stock pursuant to the 2010 Incentive Plan The exercise price of the options is $10.30 which is 100% of the

fair market value of the Companys Common Stock as determined by reference to the closing price of the Companys

Common Stock as reported on the NASDAQ Capital Market on March 16 2010 the date of grant The options expire

ten years from the date of grant unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of the 2010 Incentive Plan The

options shall be subject to both time and performance based vesting requirements each of which must be satisfied

before options are fully vested and eligible to be exercised Pursuant to the time vesting requirements the options vest

over period of five years with 20000 options vesting upon each one year anniversary of the date of grant Pursuant

to the performance vesting requirements the options vest in increments of 20000 shares upon each increase of $2.00

or more in the market price of the Companys common stock above the exercise price $10.30 of the options To

satisfy this requirement the common stock must trade at that increased level for period of at least ten trading days

during any one quarter As of June 30 2011 all the performance vesting requirements have been met

On March 16 2010 the Compensation Committee also authorized grant
of 5000 stock options to the Companys

Vice President Real Estate David Gonzalez to purchase up to 5000 shares of the Companys common stock

pursuant to the 2010 Plan The exercise price of the options is $10.30 and the options expire ten years from the date of

grant unless earlier terminated in accordance with the terms of the 2010 Incentive Plan The options vest as follows

March 16 2011 2500 shares and March 16 20122500 shares

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using Black-Scholes option valuation model

that uses the assumptions noted in the table below Because Black-Scholes option valuation models incorporate ranges

of assumptions for inputs those ranges are disclosed Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the

Companys stock and other factors The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and employee

termination within the valuation model The expected term of options granted is derived from the output of the option

valuation model and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding The risk-free

rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S Treasury yield curve in effect at the time

of grant

The fair value of options granted during the year ended June 30 2010 are measured by applying the Black-Scholes

model on grant date using the following assumptions

Expected volatility 51.6%

Expected term years

Expected dividend yield 0%

Risk-free interest rate 2.3 6%

During the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 the Company recorded stock option compensation cost of $278000

and $43000 respectively related to issuance of stock options As of June 30 2011 there was total of $268000 of

unamortized compensation related to stock options which is expected to be recognized over the weighted-average of

years
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The following table summarizes the stock options activity from June 30 2009 through June 30 2011

Number of Weighted Average Weighted Average Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price Remaining Life Intrinsic Value

Oustanding at June 30 2009 102000 12.47 3.15 years 52000

Granted 105000 10.30

Exercised 3000 12.00

Forfeited

Exchanged 12000 12.00
________________

Oustanding at June 30 2010 192000 11.32 6.44 years 790000

Granted

Exercised 3000 12.70

Forfeited

Exchanged 27000 12.96
________________

Oustanding at June 30 2011 162000 11.02

79500 11.76

162000 11.02

6.48 years 2252000

4.20 years 1046000

6.48 years 2252000

During the year ended June 30 2011 15000 stock options were exchanged for 6020 shares of common stock and

2564 RSUs During the year ended June 30 2010 12000 stock options were exchanged for 5884 RSUs

The InterGroup Corporation 2007 Stock Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors

The InterGroup Corporation 2007 Stock Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors the 2007 Stock Plan
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on February 21 2007 and was thereafter adopted by the Board of

Directors The 2007 Stock Plan will terminate upon the earlier of the date all shares reserved for issuance have been

awarded or February 21 2017 if not sooner terminated by the Board upon recommendation by the Compensation
Committee The stock available for issuance under the 2007Stock Plan shall be unrestricted shares of the Companys
Common Stock par value $.01 per share which may be unissued shares or treasury shares Subject to certain

adjustments upon changes in capitalization maximum of 60000 shares of the Common Stock will be available for

issuance to participants under the 2007 Stock Plan

All non-employee directors are eligible to participate in the 2007 Plan Each non-employee director as of the adoption

date of the 2007 Stock Plan was granted an award of 600 unrestricted shares of the Companys Common Stock On
each July following the adoption date of the 2007 Stock Plan each non-employee director shall receive an automatic

grant of number of shares of Companys Common Stock equal in value to $18000 based on 100% of the fair market

value as defined of the Common Stock on the date of grant provided he or she holds such position on that date and
the number of shares of Common Stock available for grant under the 2007 Stock Plan is sufficient to permit such

automatic grant Any fractional shares resulting from such grant will be rounded up to next highest whole share All

stock awards to non-employee directors will be fully vested on the date of grant The dollar amount of the annual

grant is subject to further adjustment by the Board of Directors upon recommendation by the Compensation
Committee

The stock awards granted under the 2007 Stock Plan are shares of unrestricted Common Stock and are fully vested on
the date of grant The right of the non-employee director to receive his or her annual grant of Common is personal to

the director and is not transferable Once received shares of Common Stock awarded to the non-employee director are

freely transferable subject to any requirements of Section 16b of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

Exercisable at June 30 2011

Estimated number of options

vested and expected to vest at June 30 2011
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the Exchange Act On June 28 2007 Company filed registration statement on Form S-8 to register the shares

subject to the 2007 Stock Plan and the Companys two prior stock option plans under the Securities Act of 1933 as

amended the Securities Act

Upon recommendation of the Compensation Committee the Board may at any time and from time to time and in any

respect amend or modify the 2007 Stock Plan The Board must obtain stockholder approval of any material

amendment to the 2007 Stock Plan if required by any applicable law regulation or stock exchange rule The Board of

Directors may amend the 2007 Stock Plan or any award agreement which amendment may be retroactive in order to

conform it to any present or future law regulation or ruling relating to plans of this or similar nature No amendment

or modification of the 2007 Stock Plan or any award agreement may adversely affect any outstanding award without

the written consent of the participant holding the award

Upon recommendation of the Compensation Committee the Board of Directors on February 23 2011 voted to

increase the annual grant awarded to each of the non-employee directors to number of shares of Companys

common stock equal in value to $22000 effective as of the July 2011 grant while decreasing the annual cash

compensation payable to non-employee directors from $16000 to $12000 per year

For the years
ended June 30 2011 and 2010 the four non-employee directors of the Company received total grant

of

4716 and 6004 shares of Common Stock pursuant to the 2007 Stock Plan respectively

The InterGroup Corporation 2008 Restricted Stock Unit Plan

On December 2008 the Board of Directors of the Company adopted new equity compensation plan for its

officers directors and key employees entitled The InterGroup Corporation 2008 Restricted Stock Unit Plan the

2008 RSU Plan The Plan was adopted in part to replace the stock option plans that expired on December 2008

The 2008 RSU Plan was approved by shareholders at the Companys Annual Meeting of Shareholders on February

18 2009

The 2008 RSU Plan authorizes the Company to issue restricted stock units RSUs as equity compensation to

officers directors and key employees of the Company on such terms and conditions established by the Compensation

Committee of the Company RSUs are not actual shares of the Companys common stock but rather promises to

deliver common stock in the future subject to certain vesting requirements and other restrictions as may be

determined by the Committee Holders of RSUs have no voting rights with respect to the underlying shares of

common stock and holders are not entitled to receive any dividends until the RSUs vest and the shares are delivered

No awards of RSUs shall vest until at least nine months after shareholder approval of the 2008 RSU Plan on February

18 2009 Subject to certain adjustments upon changes in capitalization maximum of 200000 shares of the common

stock are available for issuance to participants under the 2008 RSU Plan The 2008 RSU Plan will terminate ten 10

years from December 2008 unless terminated sooner by the Board of Directors After the 2008 RSU Plan is

terminated no awards may be granted but awards previously granted shall remain outstanding in accordance with the

Plan and their applicable terms and conditions

Under the 2008 RSU Plan the Compensation Committee also has the power and authority to establish and implement

an exchange program that would permit the Company to offer holders of awards issued under prior shareholder

approved compensation plans to exchange certain options for new RSUs on terms and conditions to be set by the

Committee The exchange program is designed to increase the retention and motivational value of awards granted

under prior plans In addition by exchanging options for RSUs the Company will reduce the number of shares of

common stock subject to equity awards thereby reducing potential dilution to stockholders in the event of significant

increases in the value of its common stock
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The table below summarizes the RSUs granted and outstanding

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Number of RSUs Fair Value

RSUsoutstandingasof June3O2009 95215 12.46

Granted 2564 15.26

Converted to common stock 65215 8.42

RSUs outstanding as of June 30 2010

RSUs outstanding as of June 302011

12.89

24.92

13.07

16.14

NOTE 17- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Granted

Converted to common stock

32564

5884

17564

20884

During the
year ended June 30 2011 and 2010 no additional compensation expense was recognized related to the

exchange of previously issued stock options to RSUs as the fair market value of the options immediately prior to the

exchanges approximated the fair value of the RSUs on the date of issuance During the years ended June 30 2011
and 2010 12000 stock options for each year were exchanged for 2564 and 5884 RSUs respectively

As Chairman of the Securities Investment Committee the Companys President and Chief Executive Officer John

Winfield directs the investment activity of the Company in public and private markets pursuant to authority granted

by the Board of Directors Mr Winfield also serves as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of InterGroup and

oversees the investment activity of the Company Depending on certain market conditions and various risk factors
the Chief Executive Officer his family and the Company may at times invest in the same companies in which the

Company invests The Company encourages such investments because it places personal resources of the Chief

Executive Officer and his family members and the resources of InterGroup at risk in connection with investment

decisions made on behalf of the Company

On July 18 2003 the disinterested members of the Board of Directors established performance based compensation

program for the Companys CEO to keep and retain his services as direct and active manager of the Companys
securities portfolio Pursuant to the criteria established by the Board Mr Winfield is entitled to performance based

compensation for his management of the Companys securities portfolio equal to 20% of all net investment gains

generated in excess of the performance of the SP 500 Index Compensation amounts are calculated and paid

quarterly based on the results of the Companys investment portfolio for that quarter Should the Company have net

investment loss during any quarter Mr Winfield would not be entitled to any further performance-based

compensation until any such investment losses are recouped by the Company On February 26 2004 the Board of
Directors amended the performance threshold to require an annualized return equal to the Prime Rate of Interest as
published in the Wall Street Journal plus 2% instead of the SP 500 Index effective with the quarterly period

commencing January 2004 This performance based compensation program may be further modified or terminated

at the discretion of the Board

The Companys CEO based on the results of the Companys investment portfolio did not earn any performance
based compensation for the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010
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NOTE 18- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Administrative FeesGeneral Partners

During the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 the general partners were paid total of $468000 and $417000

respectively which is included in hotel operating expense in the statement of operations The total amounts paid

represents
the minimum base compensation of $285000 each year plus $183000 and $131000 respectively based upon

the agreement Total general partner fees paid to Portsmouth for the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 totaled

$323000 and $264000 respectively These amounts were eliminated in consolidation

Franchise Agreements

The Partnership entered into Franchise License agreement the License agreement with the Hilton Hotels Corporation

Hilton on December 10 2004 The term of the License agreement is for period of 15 years commencing on the opening

date with an option to extend the license agreement for another five years subject to certain conditions

Beginning on the opening date in January 2006 the Partnership paid monthly royalty fees for the first two years
of three

percent 3% of the Hotels gross room revenue for the preceding calendar month the third year was at four percent 4%
of the Hotels gross room revenue and the fourth year

until the end of the term will be five percent 5% of the Hotels

gross room revenue The Partnership also pays monthly program fee of four percent 4% of the Hotels gross revenue

The amount of the monthly program fee is subject to change however the increase cannot exceed one percent 1% of the

Hotel gross room revenue in any calendar year and the cumulative increases in the monthly fees will not exceed five

percent 5% of gross room revenue Franchise fees which are included in hotel operating expense for the years
ended

June 30 2011 and 2010 were $2574000 and $2239000 respectively

The Partnership also pays
Hilton monthly information technology recapture charge of 0.75% of the Hotels gross

revenues In this difficult economic environment Hilton agreed to reduce its information technology fees to 0.65% for the

2010 calendar year For the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 those charges were $160000 and $139000

respectively and are included the in hotel operating expense

Legal Matters

The Company is involved from time to time in various claims in the ordinary course of business Management does

not believe that the impact of such matters will have material effect on the financial conditions or result of

operations when resolved

NOTE 19- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

Justice has 401k Profit Sharing Plan the Plan for non-union employees who have completed six months of service Justice

provides matching contribution up to 4% of the contribution to the Plan based upon certain percentage on the employees

elective deferrals Justice may also make discretionaiy contributions to the Plan each year
Contributions made to the Plan

amounted to $59000 and $64000 during the years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 respectively

Certain employees of Justice who are members of various unions are covered by union-sponsored collectively bargained

multi-employer health and welfare and benefit pension plans Justice does not contribute separately to those multi-employer

plans
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FORWARD-LOOKJG STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities

Litigation reform Act of 1995 Forward-looking statements give our current expectations or forecasts of future events
You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts They contain
words such as anticipate estimate expect project intend plan believe may could might and
other words or phrases of similar meaning in connection with any discussion of future operating or fmancial

performance From time to time we also provide forward-looking statements in our Forms 10-K l0-Q and 8-K
Annual Reports to Shareholders press releases and other materials we may release to the public Forward looking
statements reflect our current views about future events and are subject to risks uncertainties assumptions and

changes in circumstances that may cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in any
forward looking statement Consequently no forward looking statement can be guaranteed and our actual future
results may differ materially

Factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from current expectations include but are not limited to

risks associated with the lodging industry including competition increases in wages labor relations energy
and fuel costs actual and threatened pandemics actual and threatened terrorist attacks and downturns in

domestic and international economic and market conditions particularly in the San Francisco Bay area

risks associated with the real estate industry including changes in real estate and zoning laws or regulations
increases in real property taxes rising insurance premiums costs of compliance with environmental laws and
other governmental regulations

the availability and terms of financing and capital and the general volatility of securities markets

changes in the competitive environment in the hotel industry

risks related to natural disasters

litigation and

other risk factors discussed below in this Report

We caution you not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements which speak only as to the date
hereof We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward looking statements whether as result of new
information future events or otherwise You are advised however to consult any further disclosures we make on
related subjects on our Forms 10-K 10-Q and 8-K reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission
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FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Companys principal sources of revenue continue to be derived from the investment of its 68.8% owned

subsidiary Portsmouth in the Justice Investors limited partnership Justice or the Partnership rental income

from its investments in multi-family real estate properties and income received from investment of its cash and

securities assets Portsmouth has 50.0% limited partnership interest in Justice and serves as the managing general

partner
of Justice Evon Corporation Evon serves as the other general partner Justice owns the land

improvements and leaseholds at 750 Kearny Street San Francisco California known as the Hilton San Francisco

Financial District the Hotel The financial statements of Justice have been consolidated with those of the

Company See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Hotel is operated by the Partnership as full service Hilton brand hotel pursuant to Franchise License

Agreement with Hilton Hotels Corporation The term of the Agreement is for period of 15 years commencing on

January 12 2006 with an option to extend the license term for another five years subject to certain conditions Justice

also has Management Agreement with Prism Hospitality L.P Prism to perform the day-to-day management

functions of the Hotel

Until September 30 2008 the Partnership also derived income from the lease of the parking garage to Evon

Effective October 2008 Justice entered into an installment sale agreement with Evon to purchase the remaining

term of the garage lease and related garage assets and assumed the contract with Ace Parking for the operations of the

garage Justice also leases portion of the lobby level of the Hotel to day spa operator
Portsmouth also receives

management fees as general partner of Justice for its services in overseeing and managing the Partnerships assets

Those fees are eliminated in consolidation

In addition to the operations of the Hotel the Company also generates income from the ownership and management of

real estate Properties include eighteen apartment complexes two commercial real estate properties
and two single-

family houses as strategic investments The properties are located throughout the United States but are concentrated

in Texas and Southern California The Company also has investments in unimproved real property All of the

Companys residential rental properties in California are managed by professional third party property management

companies and the rental properties outside of California are managed by the Company The commercial real estate in

California is also managed by the Company

The Company acquires its investments in real estate and other investments utilizing cash securities or debt subject to

approval or guidelines of the Board of Directors The Company also invests in income-producing instruments equity

and debt securities and will consider other investments if such investments offer growth or profit potential

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2011 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2010

The Company had net income of $10443000 for the year
ended June 30 2011 compared to net loss of $4575000

for the year ended June 30 2010 The change is primarily attributable to the substantial income generated from

investing activities and to lesser extent the significant improvement in the operations of the hotel and the gain on

the sale of real estate during the current year

The Company had net income from hotel operations of $512000 for the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 compared to

net loss of $2390000 for the fiscal year ended June 30 2010 The change to net income from hotel operations from

net loss is primarily attributable to $1280000 decrease in depreciation and amortization expense as many of the

furniture and fixture improvements from the renovation of the Hotel reached full deprecation during fiscal 2011 The

Hotel also had significant increase in room revenues compared to the prior year

34



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPETIONS

The following table sets forth more detailed presentation of Hotel operations for the years ended June 30 2011 and
2010

FortheyearsendedJune30 2011 2010
Hotel revenues

Hotel rooms 27839000 24848000
Food and beverage 5028000 4703000
Garage 2599000 2507000
Other operating departments 816000 622000

Total hotel revenues 36282000 32680000
Operating expenses excluding interest depreciation and amortization 29299000 27223000
Operating income before interest depreciation and amortization 6983000 5457000
Interest

2806000 2902000
Depreciation and amortization 3665000 4945000

Net income loss from hotel operations 512000 2390000

For the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 the Hotel generated operating income of $6983000 before interest
depreciation and amortization on total operating revenues of $36282000 compared to operating income of
$5457000 before interest depreciation and amortization on operating revenues of $32680000 for the fiscal year
ended June 30 2010 The increase in income from Hotel operations is primarily attributable to increases in room food
and beverage and other revenues in the current year partially offset by an increase in operating expenses due to

higher labor costs and increased staffing to improve guest satisfaction as well as greater franchise and management
fees which are based on percentage of revenues

Room revenues increased by $2991000 for the fiscal
year ended June 30 2011 compared to the fiscal year ended

June 30 2010 and food and beverage revenues increased by $325000 for the same period The increase in room
revenues was primarily attributable to significant increase in average daily room rates during fiscal 2011 as the
Hotel began to see an increase in higher rated leisure corporate and group business travel which also resulted in

higher in food and beverage revenues

The following table sets forth the average daily room rate average occupancy percentage and room revenue per
available room RevPar of the Hotel for the fiscal years ended June 30 2011 and 2010

Fiscal Year Average Average
ended tune 30 Daily Rate Occupancy RevPar

2011 $163 86% $140

2010 $143 87% $125

The operations of the Hotel experienced an increase in the higher rated business and
group travel segments in fiscal

2011 as the hospitality industry began to see some recovery As result the Hotels
average daily rate increased

significantly by $20 for the fiscal year ended June 30 2011 compared to the fiscal
year ended June 30 2010 The

modest decrease in occupancy of 1% was due to the Hotel being able to reduce the amount of discounted Internet
business that it was forced to take in the prior year to maintain occupancy in

very competitive market As result
the Hotel was able to achieve RevPar number that was $15 higher than fiscal 2010

During the past year we have seen our management team guide our Hotel through difficult economic period by
taking bold steps to reduce expenses and implement innovative strategies in order to improve operations and enhance
our competitiveness in the market Currently we are working on new executive lounge on the 26th floor of the Hotel
that is expected to open in early October 2011 We have also taken actions to improve out internet

connectivity
throughout the Hotel and will be providing more technological amenities for our guests
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We will continue in our efforts to upgrade our guest rooms and facilities and explore new and innovative ways to

differentiate the Hotel from its competition Moving forward we will also focus on cultivating more international

business especially from China and capturing higher percentage of corporate and group travel During the last

twelve months we have seen some improvement in business and leisure travel If that trend in the San Francisco

market and the hotel industry continues it should translate into an increase in room revenues and profitability

However like all hotels we will remain subject to the uncertain domestic and global economic environment

While operating in highly competitive rental market real estate operations remained relatively consistent The

Company had real estate revenues were $13932000 for the year ended June 30 2011 compared with revenues of

$13738000 for the year
ended June 30 2010 Real estate operating expenses were $7444000 and $7101000 for

the comparative periods Depreciation related to the Companys real estate operations increased to $2646000 for the

year
ended June 30 2011 from $1960000 for the year ended June 30 2010 primarily as the result of one-time

depreciation expense catch-up of $727000 recorded in the current year due to the reclass of the Companys held for

sale property from discontinued operations to continuing operations Management continues to review and analyze

the Companys real estate operations to improve occupancy and rental rates and to reduce expenses
and improve

efficiencies

In January 2011 the Company sold its 132-unit apartment complex located in San Antonio Texas for $5500000 and

recognized gain on the sale of real estate of $3290000 The Company received net proceeds of $2030000 after

selling costs and the pay-off of the related outstanding mortgage note payable of $3215000 The proceeds were

placed with third party accommodator for the purpose
of executing Section 1031 tax-deferred exchange for another

property In April 2011 the Company purchased 9-unit beachside apartment complex located in Marina Del Rey

California for $4000000 to effectuate that exchange As part of the purchase the Company obtained 10-year

mortgage note payable in the amount of $1487000 The interest rate on the loan is fixed at 5.60% per annum with

monthly principal
and interest payments based on 30-year amortization schedule The note matures in May 2021

The Company had net gain on marketable securities of $2675000 for the year
ended June 30 2011 as compared to

net loss on marketable securities of $747000 for the year ended June 30 2010 For the year
ended June 30 2011

the Company had net realized gain of $47000 and net unrealized gain of $2628000 For the year
ended June 30

2010 the Company had net realized gain of $3993000 and net unrealized loss of $4740000 Gains and losses on

marketable securities and other investments may fluctuate significantly from period to period in the future and could

have significant impact on the Companys net income However the amount of gain or loss on marketable

securities and other investments for any given period may have no predictive value and variations in amount from

period to period may have no analytical value For more detailed description of the composition of the Companys

marketable securities please see the Marketable Securities section below

The Company may also invest with the approval of the Securities Investment Committee and other Company

guidelines in private investment equity funds and other unlisted securities such as convertible notes through private

placements Those investments in non-marketable securities are carried at cost on the Companys balance sheet as part

of other investments net of other than temporary impairment losses As of June 30 2011 the Company had net other

investments of $17285000 On October 20 2010 as part of debt restructuring of one of its investments the

Company exchanged approximately $13231000 in notes convertible notes and debt instruments that it held in

Comstock Mining Inc Comstock OTCBB LODE for 13231 shares $1000 stated value of newly created

1/2% Series A-I Convertible Preferred Stock the A-i Preferred of Comstock Prior to the exchange those notes

and convertible debt instruments had carrying value of $1809000 net of impairment adjustments
The Company

accounted for the transaction as an exchange of its debt securities and recorded the new instruments A-i Preferred

received based on their fair value The Company estimated the fair value of the A-I Preferred at $1000 per share

which was the stated value of the instrument for total of $13231000 The fair value of the A-I Preferred had

similar value to the Series preferred stock fmancing stated value of $1000 per share by which Comstock

concurrently raised $35.7 million in new capital from other investors in October 2010 The Company recorded an

unrealized gain of $11422000 related to the preferred stock received as part
of the debt restructuring This gain is

included in the net unrealized gain on other investments on the Consolidated Statement of Operations
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During the year ended June 30 2011 and 2010 the Company performed an impairment analysis of its other
investments and determined that one of its investments had other than temporary impairment and recorded impairment
losses of $976000 and $1805000 for each respective period

Dividend and interest income increased to $1540000 for the
year ended June 30 2011 from $425000 for the year

ended June 30 2010 primarily as the result of receiving stock dividend of $845000 from Comstock during the

current year

Margin interest and trading expenses increased to $1577000 for the year ended June 30 2011 from $1398000 for

the year ended June 30 2010 The increase is primarily due to the increase in margin interest expense to $547000 for

the year ended June 30 2011 from $435000 for the year ended June 30 2010 The increase is the result of the

maintenance of higher margin balances

During the year ended June 30 2011 the Company had an income tax expense of $5065000 on both continuing and
discontinued operations compared to an income tax benefit of $1639000 during the year ended June 30 2010 The
effective tax rate is higher for the year ended June 30 2011 as compared to the

year ended June 30 2010 primarily
due to having income from Justice of which 50% is taxable to Portsmouth which resulted in lower amount of
noncontrolling interest that was reconciled against the net income of the Company for income tax calculation

purposes

MARKETABLE SECURITIES

As of June 30 2011 and 2010 the Company had investments in marketable equity securities of $19438000 and
$7712000 respectively The following table shows the composition of the Companys marketable securities

portfolio by selected industry groups as

As of June 30 2011 of Total

Investment

Industry Group Fair Value Securities

Basic materials 4978000 25.6%

Services 3740000 19.2%

Investment funds 3358000 17.3%

Financial services 2012000 14.7%

RUTs and real estate companies 2851000 10.4%

Other 2499000 12.8%

19438000 100.0%

As of June 30 2010 of Total

Investment

Industry Group Fair Value Securities

Investment funds 3271000 42.4%

REITs 1946000 25.2%

Healthcare
668000 8.7%

Financial services 551000 7.1%
Other 1276000 16.6%

7712000 100.0%

The Companys investment portfolio is diversified with 73 different equity positions The portfolio contains two
individual equity security positions that are more than 5% of the total equity value of the portfolio with the largest

representing approximately 21.3% of the total equity value of the entire portfolio The amount of the Companys
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investment in any particular issuer may increase or decrease and additions or deletions to its securities portfolio may

occur at any time While it is the internal policy of the Company to limit its initial investment in any single equity to

less than 5% of its total portfolio value that investment could eventually exceed 5% as result of equity appreciation

or reduction of other positions
Marketable securities are stated at fair value as determined by the most recently traded

price of each security at the balance sheet date

The following table shows the net gain or loss on the Companys marketable securities and the associated margin

interest and trading expenses for the respective years

2010
For the years ended June 30

Net gain loss on marketable securities

Net unrealized gain on other investments

Impairment loss on other investments

Dividend and interest income

Margin interest expense

Trading and management expenses

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

2011

2675000

11565000

976000
1540000

547000
1030000
13227000

The Companys cash flows are primarily generated from its Hotel operations real estate operations and from the

investment of its cash in marketable securities and other investments

Following the temporary suspension of operations in May 2005 for major renovations the Hotel started and

continues to generate cash flows from its operations As result Justice was able to pay some limited partnership

distributions in fiscal years
2008 and 2009 However due to the significant downturn in the San Francisco hotel

market beginning in September 2008 and the continued weakness in domestic and international economies no

Partnership distributions were paid in fiscal 2011 and 2010 During such periods the Company has to depend more on

the revenues generated from the investment of its cash and marketable securities and from its general partner

management fees Since we have seen some recent improvements in the operations of the Hotel and the San

Francisco market in general the Partnership may be in position to consider limited partnership distributions in fiscal

2012 The general partners
will continue to monitor and review the operations and financial results of the Hotel and to

set the amount of any future distributions that may be appropriate based on operating results cash flows and other

factors including establishment of reasonable reserves for debt payments and operating contingencies

The new Justice Compensation Agreement that became effective on December 2008 when Portsmouth assumed the

role of managing general partner of Justice has provided additional cash flows to the Company Under the new

Compensation Agreement Portsmouth is now entitled to 80% of the minimum base fee to be paid to the general

partners of $285000 while under the prior agreement Portsmouth was entitled to receive only 20% of the minimum

base fee As result of that new agreement and the increase in Hotel gross revenues in fiscal 2011 total general

partner fees paid to Portsmouth for the year
ended June 30 2011 increased to $323000 compared to $264000 for the

year ended June 30 2010

To meet its substantial financial commitments for the renovation and transition of the Hotel to Hilton Justice had to

rely on borrowings to meet its obligations On July 27 2005 Justice entered into first mortgage loan with The

Prudential Insurance Company of America in principal amount of $30000000 the Prudential Loan The term of

the Prudential Loan is for 120 months at fixed interest rate of 5.22% per annum The Prudential Loan calls for

monthly installments of principal and interest in the amount of approximately $165000 calculated on 30-year

amortization schedule The Loan is collateralized by first deed of trust on the Partnerships Hotel property including

all improvements and personal property thereon and an assignment of all present and future leases and rents The

Prudential Loan is without recourse to the limited and general partners of Justice The principal balance of the

Prudential Loan was $27176000 as of June 30 2011

747000
181000

1805000
425000

435000
963000

3344000
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In March 27 2007 Justice entered into second mortgage loan with Prudential the Second Prudential Loan in

principal amount of $19000000 The term of the Second Prudential Loan is for 100 months and matures on August
2015 the same date as the first Prudential Loan The Second Prudential Loan is at fixed interest rate of 6.42% per
annum and calls for monthly installments of principal and interest in the amount of $119000 calculated on 30-year
amortization schedule The Second Prudential Loan is collateralized by second deed of trust on the Partnerships
Hotel property including all improvements and personal property thereon and an assignment of all present and future
leases and rents The Second Prudential Loan is also without recourse to the limited and general partners of Justice
The principal balance of the Second Prudential Loan was $18003000 as of June 30 2011

Effective April 29 2010 the Partnership obtained modification of its $2500000 unsecured revolving line of credit

facility with East West Bank formerly United Commercial Bank that was to mature on April 30 2010 and
converted that line of credit facility to an unsecured term loan The modification provides that Justice will pay the

$2500000 balance on its line of credit facility over period of four years to mature on April 30 2014 This term
loan calls for monthly principal and interest payments of $41000 calculated on nine-year amortization schedule
with interest only from May 2010 to August 31 2010 Pursuant to the modification the annual floating interest rate

was reduced by 0.5% to the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 2.5% with minimum floor rate of 5.0%
per

annum The modification provides for new financial covenants that include specific financial ratios and return to

minimum
profitability after June 30 2011 Management believes that the Partnership has the ability to meet the

specific covenants and the Partnership was in compliance with the covenants as of June 30 2011 As of June 30
2011 the interest rate was 5.75% and the outstanding balance was $2202000

Despite the downturns in the economy the Hotel has continued to generate positive cash flows While the debt service

requirements related to the two Prudential loans as well as the new term loan to pay off the line of credit may create
some additional risk for the Company and its ability to generate cash flows in the future since the Partnerships assets

had been virtually debt free for number of years management believes that cash flows from the operations of the
Hotel and the

garage will continue to be sufficient to meet all of the Partnerships current and future obligations and
financial requirements Management also believes that there is sufficient equity in the Hotel assets to support future

borrowings if necessary to fund any new capital improvements and other requirements

In January 2011 the Company sold its 132-unit apartment complex located in San Antonio Texas for $5500000 and
recognized gain on the sale of real estate of $3290000 The Company received net proceeds of $2030000 after

selling costs and the pay-off of the related
outstanding mortgage note payable of $3215000 The proceeds were

placed with third party accommodator for the purpose of executing Section 1031 tax-deferred exchange for another

property In April 2011 the Company purchased 9-unit beachside
apartment complex located in Marina Del Rey

California for $4000000 As part of the purchase the Company obtained 10-year mortgage note payable in the
amount of $1487000 The interest rate on the loan is fixed at 5.60% per annum with monthly principal and interest

payments based on 30-year amortization schedule The note matures in May 2021

In February 2011 the Company refinanced its $715000 adjustable rate mortgage note payable on its 9-unit apartment
building located in Los Angeles California for new 10-year fixed rate mortgage in the amount of $1265000 The
interest rate on the new loan is fixed at 5.89%

per annum with monthly principal and interest payments based on 30-

year amortization schedule The note matures in March 2021 The Company received net proceeds of approximately
$367000 from the refinancing

In February 2011 the Company refinanced its $958000 adjustable rate mortgage note payable on its 14-unit

apartment building located in Los Angeles California for new 10-year fixed rate mortgage in the amount of
$1855000 The interest rate on the new loan is fixed at 5.89% per annum with monthly principal and interest

payments based on 30-year amortization schedule The note matures in March 2021 The Company received net
proceeds of approximately $687000 from the refinancing

In December 2010 the Company modified its $5932000 mortgage note payable on the property located in St Louis
Missouri Prior to the modification of the mortgage note the Company paid fixed rate of 6.16% Upon
modification the interest rate was based upon LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate plus 3.5% Concurrent with
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the modification of the note the Company entered into rate swap agreement in order to settle the variable rate i.e

LIBOR into fixed rate of 1.35% thereby allowing the Company to pay total fixed interest rate of 4.85% The

swap agreement matures in May 2013 swap is contractual agreement to exchange interest rate payments Under

the swap agreement the Company agrees to pay the bank counterparty fixed rate and the bank agrees
to pay the

Company floating rate The interest rate swap agreement is being measured at fair value but was not designated by

the Company as cash flow hedge Should the Company terminate the swap contract prematurely it would be

required to pay the fair value of the swap valued at $91000 as of June 30 2011 which is recorded as liability by the

Company under accounts payable and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet The change in the fair

value of the instrument is recognized and recorded in the net unrealized gain loss on other investments and

derivative instruments in the consolidated statement of operations

In November 2010 the Company refinanced its $1641000 adjustable rate mortgage note payable on its 27-unit

apartment building located in Los Angeles California for new 10-year
fixed rate mortgage in the amount of

$3260000 The interest rate on the new loan is fixed at 4.85% per annum with monthly principal and interest

payments based on 30-year amortization schedule The note matures in December 2020 The Company received net

proceeds of approximately $1507000 from the refinancing

In November 2010 the Company also refmanced its $3569000 adjustable rate mortgage note payable on its 31-unit

apartment building located in Los Angeles California for new 10-year fixed rate mortgage in the amount of

$5787000 The interest rate on the new loan is fixed at 4.85% per annum with monthly principal and interest

payments based on 30-year amortization schedule The note matures in December 2020 The Company received net

proceeds of approximately $2078000 from the refinancing

The Company has invested in short-term income-producing instruments and in equity and debt securities when

deemed appropriate
The Companys marketable securities are classified as trading with unrealized gains and losses

recorded through the statement of operations

Management believes that its cash securities assets and the cash flows generated from those assets and from

partnership distributions and management fees will be adequate to meet the Companys current and future

obligations

MATERIAL CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table provides summary of the Companys material fmancial obligations which also includes interest

Mortgage notes payable

Other notes payable

Interest

Total

Total Year Year Year Year YearS Thereafter

117616000 2405000 2431000 1821000 1786000 42243000 66930000

2786000 651000 569000 1558000 8000

35340000 6378000 6367000 7531000 4112000 2053000 8899000

155742000 9434000 9367000 10910.000 5906000 44296000 75829000

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has no material off balance sheet arrangements
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IMPACT OF INFLATION

Hotel room rates are typically impacted by supply and demand factors not inflation since rental of hotel room is

usually for limited number of nights Room rates can be and usually are adjusted to account for inflationary cost
increases Since Prism has the power and ability under the terms of its management agreement to adjust hotel room
rates on an ongoing basis there should be minimal impact on partnership revenues due to inflation Partnership
revenues are also subject to interest rate risks which may be influenced by inflation For the two most recent fiscal

years the impact of inflation on the Companys income is not viewed by management as material

The Companys residential rental properties provide income from short-term operating leases and no lease extends
beyond one year Rental increases are expected to offset anticipated increased

property operating expenses

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Critical accounting policies are those that are most significant to the portrayal of our financial position and results of

operations and require judgments by management in order to make estimates about the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that

affect the reported amounts in our consolidated financial statements We evaluate our estimates on an on-going basis
including those related to the consolidation of our subsidiaries to our revenues allowances for bad debts accruals
asset impairments other investments income taxes and commitments and contingencies We base our estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities The actual
results may differ from these estimates or our estimates may be affected by different assumptions or conditions
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The Companys Common Stock is listed and trades on the NASDAQ Capital Market tier of the NASDAQ Stock

Market LLC under the symbol INTG The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices for the

Companys common stock for each quarter of the last two fiscal years ended June 30 2011 and 2010 as reported by

NASDAQ

Fiscal 2011 High Low

First Quarter 7/ Ito 9/30 $16.94 $14.04

Second Quarter 10/I to 12/31 $25.94 $16.91

Third Quarter 1/1 to 3/31 $22.80 $19.00

Fourth Quarter 4/1 to 6/30 $25.46 $23.00

Fiscal 2010

First Quarter 7/ ito 9/30 $12.01 7.80

SecondQuarter10/ltol2/3l $11.64 8.35

ThirdQuarter1/1t03/31 $11.34 8.50

Fourth Quarter 4/i to 6/30 $16.24 $10.86

As of September 13 2011 the approximate
number of holders of record of the Companys Common Stock was 535

Such number of owners was determined from the Companys shareholders records and does not include beneficial

owners of the Companys Common Stock whose shares are held in names of various brokers clearing agencies or

other nominees Including beneficial holders there are approximately
950 shareholders of the Companys Common

Stock

DIVIDENDS

The Company has not declared any cash dividends on its common stock and does not foresee issuing cash dividends

in the near future
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